STATE OF CALIFORNIA . ARNOLD SCHWARZENEGGER, Governor

COMMISSION ON STATE MANDATES
980 NINTH STREET, SUITE 300

SACRAMENTO, CA 95814

PHONE: (916) 323-3562

FAX: (916) 445-0278

E-mail: csminfo@csm.ca.gov

July 2, 2008

Mr. Allan Burdick

MAXIMUS N S
4320 Auburn Blvd., Suite 2000
Sacramento, CA 95841

And Interested Parties and Affected State Agencies (See Enclosed Mailing List)

RE: Draft Staff Analysis, Proposed Parameters and Guidelines, and Hearing Date
Fifteen Day Close of Voter Registration, (01-TC-15)
Elections Code Sections 13303
Statutes 2000, Chapter 899 (AB 1094)
Orange County, Claimant

Dear Mr. Burdick:

The draft staff analysis and proposed parameters and guidelines, as modified by staff are
enclosed for your review and comment. -

Written Comments

Any party or interested person may file written comments on the draft staff analysis and
proposed parameters and guidelines by July 15, 2008. You are advised that comments filed with
the Commission are required to be simultaneously served on the other interested parties on the
mailing list, and to be accompanied by a proof of service. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 1181.2.) If
you would like to request an extension of time to file comments, please refer to section 1183.01,
subdivision (¢)(1), of the Commission’s regulations.

Hearing

This test claim is set for hearing on Friday, August 1, 2008 at 9:30 a.m. in Room 447, State
_ Cap1tol Sacramento, CA. The final staff analysis w1ll be issued on or about July 18, 2008. This
matter is proposed for the Consent Calendar. Please let us know in advance if you or a
 representative of your agency will testify at the hearing, and if other witnesses will appear. If
you would like to request postponement of the hearing, please refer to section 1183.01,
subdivision (c)(2), of the Commission’s regulations.

Special Accommodations

For any special accommodations such as a sign language interpreter, an assistive listening
device, materials in an alternative format, or any other accommodations, please contact the
Commission Office at least five to seven working days prior to the meeting.

Please contact me at (916) 323-8217 with any questions regarding this matter.

Sincerely,

~A @,.wégcjb‘

N, Y PATTON
Assistant Executive Director
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ITEM

PROPOSED PARAMETERS AND GUIDELINES
- DRAFT STAFF ANALYSIS ‘

Elections Code 13303
Statutes 2000, Chapter 899

Fifteen Day Close of Voter Registration
- 01-TC-15

County of Orange, Claimant

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The Executive Summary will be included with the Final Staff Analysis.
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Claimants
County of Orange
Chronology
05/17/02 _ Claimant files test claim
110/04/06- Commission on State Mandates (Commission) adopted Statement of Decision
11/28/06  Claimant submits Draft Parameters and Guidelines B
01/18/07 Claimant submits Amended Proposed Parameters and Guidelines
07/01/08 Staff issues draft staff analysis and proposed parameters and guidelines
: Suminary of Findings '

Claimant, County of Orange, filed this test claim on changes to the deadline for voter registration
* prior to an election. Prior law allowed voters to newly register to vote, reregister, or change their
address with county elections officials, until the 29th day before an election. After that date,
voter registration closed until the conclusion of the upcoming election. Statutes 2000, chapter
899 amended Elections Code sections 2035, 2102, 2107, 2119, 2154, 2155, 2187, 9094, 13303
and 13306, and repealed and reenacted Elections Code section 13300, allowing new reglstratlons
or changes to voter registrations through the 15th day prior to an election. The claimant seeks
mandate reimbursement for costs incurred to register voters from the 28th through the 15th day
before elections, such as for: implementation planning meetings; revising training programs;
holding an informational media campaign; responding to additional inquiries about the new law:
and providing additional personnel to accommodate the increased workload.

The Commission adopted a Statement of Decision on October 4, 2006, finding that most of the
statutory amendments by Statutes 2000, chapter 899, did not mandate a new program or higher
level of service on county elections officials within the meaning of article XIII B, section 6.
Processing and accepting voter registration affidavits and changes of address are not newly
required under the Elections Code. County elections officials have been required to perform
these activities long before the enactment of Statutes 2000, chapter 899. The test claim
allegations generally request reimbursement for increased staffing expenses, developing and
* conducting training, and holding planning meetings; these are not new activities directly required
by the test claim legislation, but instead are costs that the claimant is associating with the
changed timeframes. Counties are required to perform the same activities they have long
performed — accepting new voter registrations and changes of address. The courts have
. consistently held that increases in the cost of an existing program, are not subject to
reimbursement as state-mandated programs or higher levels of service within the meaning of
article XIII B, section 6. :

The Commission concluded that Statutes 2000, chapter 899, as it amended Elections Code
section 13303, subdivision (c), mandates a new program or higher level of service on counties
within the meaning of article XIII B, section 6 of the California Constitution, and imposes costs
mandated by the state pursuant to Government Code section 17514, for the following one-time
activity:
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* Amend the polling place notice sent to each voter who registered after the 29th day prior
to the election, to include the following: information as to where the voter can obtain a
sample ballot and a ballot pamphlet prior to the election, a statement indicating that those
documents will be available at the polling place at the time of the election, and the
address of the Secretary of State's website and, if applicable, of the county website where
a sample ballot may be viewed. (Elec. Code, § 13303, subd. (c).)

_ The other amendments by Statutes 2000, chaptAer 899, are not subject to article XIII >B, section 6
of the California Constitution, or do not mandate a new program or higher level of service, and
are denied.

Discussion

Staff reviewed the claimant’s proposed parameters and guidelines. No comments were filed on
the proposed parameters and guidelines. Non-substantive, techhical changes were made for
purposes of clarification, consistency with language in recently adopted parameters and
guidelines, and conformity to the Statement of Decision and statutory language. Staff made the
following substantive changes: :

1L Eligible Claimants

- Claimant proposed that reimbursement begin on the effective date of the test claim legislation —
September 29, 2000. However, the test claim legislation does not contain an urgency clause, so
it does not become effective until January 1, 2001. Therefore, staff rev1sed this sectlon to clarify
that reimbursement begins on January 1, 2001

IV. Reimbursable Activities

In the Statement of Decision, only Elections Code section 13303, subdivision (c), as added by
Statutes 2000, chapter 899, was found to be mandated by the state. Elections Code
section 13303, as amended in 2000, states the following:

(a) For each election, each appropriate elections official shall cause to be
printed, on plain white paper or tinted paper, without watermark, at least as
many copies of the form of ballot provided for use in each voting precifict as -
there are voters in the precinct. These copies shall be designated “sample ballot”
upon their face and shall be identical to the official ballots used in the election,
except as otherwise provided by law. A sample ballot shall be mailed, postage
prepaid, te-each-voter not more than 40 nor less than 21 days before the election
fo each voter who is registered at least 29 days prior to the election.

+ (b) The elections official shall send notice of the polhng place to each voter with
the sample ballot. Only official matter shall be sent out with the sample ballot
as provided by law.

(c) The elections official shall send notice of the polling place to each voter who
registered after the 29th day prior to the election and is eligible to participate in
the election. The notice shall also include information as to where the voter can
obtain a sample ballot and a ballot pamphlet prior to the election, a statement

_ indicating that those documents will be available at the polling place at the time
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of the election, and the address of the Secretary of State's website and, if
applicable, of the county website where a sample ballot may be viewed.

Education Code section 13303, subdivision (a), requires that county election officials mail
polling place notices to voters who 1eglstered after the sample ballots were issued (voters who
registered between the 29" and 15" day prior to the election). The Commission found, however,
that under prior law Elections Code section 13303 already required an elections official to senda
notice of the polling place to each voter with a sample ballot. Elections Code section 13303, '
subdivision (c), just added the followint% new information to the polling place notice for voters

who registered between the 29" and 15

day prior to the election: information as to where the

voter can obtain a sample ballot and a ballot pamphlet prior to the election, a statement
indicating that those documents will be available at the polling place at the time of the election,
and the address of the Secretary of State's website and, if apphcable of the county website where
a sample ballot may be viewed.

Thus, the C01nm1351on approved reimbursement for the following one-time activity:

Amend the polling place notice sent to each voter who registered after the 29th day prior
to the election, to include the followmg information as to where the voter can obtain a
sample ballot and a ballot pamphlet prior to the election, a statement indicating that those
documents will be available at the polling place at the time of the election, and the
address of the Secretary of State s website and, if applicable, of the county website where
a sample ballot may be viewed.'

Denied Activities

The claimant proposed the folloWing one-time activities in the parameters and guidelines:

Redesign and republish the sample ballot and absentee voter application.

Notify every voter who registered from 28 days prior to the election through 15 days
prior to the election via post card, the location of their polling place and where they can
obtain a sample ballot.

Provide all sample ballots for each ballot type and tli'e’ poll site locations.

H1re additional staff to process reglstratlon forms and absentee ballot requests due to the
fact that the time period for close of registration was reduced by fourteen days and
increased overtime to process all registration forms between the original cut off of 28
days prior to the election to 15 days prior to the election.

Provide an increasd amount of official and sample ballots.

Staff deleted the above activities regarding sending sample ballots and polling place notices, and
absentee ballots because the Commission found that they were not mandated by the state under
this test claim legislation. The Statement of Decision states that most of the activities alleged by
the test claimant, 1nc1ud1ng duties related to absentee ballots have long been performed by
county elections officials.” The Statement of Decision also states that section 13303 already

! Exhibit A, Statement of Decision, page 16.
2 Exhibit A., Statement of Decision, page 13. A
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required that elections officials send sample ballots and notices of the polling place to each
voter.” Thus, staff finds that these activities go beyond the scope of the one-time reimbursable
activity to amend the existing notice. : '

Staff also deleted the activity of hiring additional staff to process registration forms because the
Commission found it was not mandated by the state.* In addition, there is no evidence in the
record that actual registrations increased as a result of the test claim statute and, thus, no

evidence to warrant the hiring of additional staff to implement the mandate.

At the test claim hearing, Deborah Seiler, Solano County Assistant Registrar of Voters, stated
that the test claim legislation has a major impact on the entire elections process, and requires
hiring of new staff to process other types of elections functions while the persons who previously
processed those functions must remain processing new voter registrations.’ Chairperson Brown
asked if voter registration had increased during this extended time period to register to vote.

Neal Kelley, Orange County Registrar of Voters stated that he had no data on hand, but he stated
that Orange County’s registration numbers are actually decreasing slightly. Chairperson Brown
stated that if there is not adequate documentation that the actual registrations have increased, he
would find it difficult, notwithstanding the shift in time periods to register to vote, to assume that
the workload has increased.’ ‘

Staff finds that there is no evidence in the record to warrant the hiring of additional staffto
implement this mandate.

ADDrove‘d Activities

The claimant did not include the one activity approved in the Statement of Decision. Therefore,
staff added the one activity of amending the polling place notice sent to each voter who
registered after the 29" day prior to the election to include specific information as it was
approved in the Statement of Decision.

- The claimant also proposed the following one time activities:
* Redesign and implement new election software.
* ' Modification of Registrar of Voters website,

‘Section 1183.1, subdivision (a)(4), of the Commission’s regulations authorizes the Commission
to include the “most reasonable methods of complying with the mandate” in the parameters and
guidelines. The “most reasonable methods of complying with the mandate” are “those methods
not specified in statute or executive order that are necessary to carry out the mandated program.”

- Staff finds that redesigning the election software used to amend the notice, and modifying the
website to reflect the amended notices sent to voters who register between the 29™ and 15M day
are necessary one-time activities to carry out the mandated program. Staff has deleted the

3 Exhibit A, Statement of Decision, page 15.
* Ibid, |

S:Exhibit A, Statemgnt of Decision, page 12.
§ Exhibit B, Transcript of Proceedings, pages 32-33,
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activity to implement the new software since it implies that the activity is ongoing. The
Commission’s decision limits reimbursement to one-time activities. Staff further added the
following underlined language to limit reimbursement to the scope of the mandated program:

* Redesign and-implement new election software used to amend the polling place notice
~ sent to each voter who registered between the 29" and 15™ day prior to the election
pursuant to Elections Code section 13303, subd1v131on (c), as amended bv Statutes 2000,

_ chapter 899.

¢ Modifyication-of the Registrar of Voters website to reflect the amendment to Elections
Code section 13303, subdivision (c), by Statutes 2000, chapter 899 that allows voters to

register through the 15th day prior to an election.
Staff Recommendation '

Staff recommends that the Commiission adopt the proposed parameters and guidelines, as
modified by staff, beginning on page 7. :

~ Staff also recommends that the Commission authorize staff to make any non-substantive,
technical corrections to the parameters and guidelines following the hearing.
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Adopted: August 1,2008

AMENDED-PROPOSED PARAMETERS AND GUIDELINES
AS MODIFIED BY STAFF

Electlons Code Section 2935%}92——2—1—94—244—9—2—164—2—15&—2—}87—9094—133@0

13303 and-13306
Statutes 2000, Chapter 899 (AB 1094)

Fifteen Day Close of Voter Registration
01-TC-15

County of Orange, Claimant

I SUMMARY OF THE MANDATE

Claimant, County of Orange, filed this test claim on changes to the deadline for voter
registration prior to an election. Prior law allowed voters to newly register to vote,
reregister, or change their address with county elections officials; until the 29th day
before an election. After that date, voter registration closed until the conclusion of the
upcoming election. Statutes 2000, chapter 899 amended Elections Code sections 2035,
2102, 2107, 2119, 2154, 2155, 2187, 9094, 13303 and 13306, and repealed and reenacted
Elections Code section 13300, allowmg new registrations or changes to voter
registrations through the 15th day prior to an election. The claimant seeks mandate
reimbursement for costs incurred to register voters from the 28th through the 15th day
before elections, such as for: implementation planning meetings; revising training

programs; holding an informational media campaign; responding to additional i inquiries
about the new law: and nrov1dLg additional personnel to accommodate the 1ncreased

‘workload.

Generally, the Commission finds that most of the statutory amendments by Statutes 2000,
chapter 899, do not mandate a new program or higher level of service on county elections
officials within the meaning of article XIII B. section 6. Processmg and accepting voter
registration affidavits and changes of address are not newly requlred under the Elections
Code. County elections officials have been required to perform these activities long
before the enactment of Statutes 2000, chapter 899. The test claim allegations generally

request reimbursement for increased staffing expenses, developmg and conducting

training, and holding planning reetings: these are not new activities directly required by
the test claim legislation, but instead are costs that the claimant is associating with the
changed timeframes. Counties are required to perform the same activities they have long
performed — accepting new voter registrations and changes of address. The courts have
consistently held that increases in the cost of an existing program. are not subiject to
reimbursement as state-mandated programs or higher levels of service within the
meaning of article XIII B, section 6.




The Commission concludes that Statutes 2000, chapter 899, as it amended Flections
Code section 13303, subdivision (c), mandates a new program or higher level of service

on counties within the meaning of article XIII B, section 6 .of the California Const1tut10n,
and imposes costs mandated by the state pursuant to Government Code Sectlon 17514, for
the followmg one-time activity:

Amend the polling place notice sent to each voter who registered after the
29th day prior to the election, to include the following: information as to
where the voter can obtain a sample ballot and a ballot pamphlet prior to the
election, a statement indicating that those documents will be available at the
polling place at the time of the election, and the address, of the Secretary of
State's website and, if applicable, of the county website where a sample ballot
may be viewed. (Elec. Code, § 13303, subd. (c).)

The other amendments by Statutes 2000, chapter 899, are not subject to article XIII B,

section 6 of the California Constitution, or do not mandate a new program or higher level
of service, and are denied,

I. ELIGIBLE CLAIMANTS

- -Any county, or city and county that incurs increased costs as a result of this reimbursa_ble-- .
state-mandated pro gram is eligible to claim relmbursement of those costs. ‘

II. PERIOD OF REIMBURSEMENT

Government Code section 17557 states that a test claim shall be submitted on or before
June 30 following a given fiscal year to establish eligibility for reimbursement for that
fiscal year. The test claim for this mandate was filed by the test claimant, County of
Orange, on April 18, 2002, establishing el glblhtv for fiscal year 2000-2001. However,
the operative date of Statutes 2000, chapter 899. is January 1, 2002. Therefore, costs.
incurred pursuant to Statutes 2000 chapter 899 are relmbursable on or after

January 1, 2001. Fhaexe hep 81 : mbe
date-ofenactment:

Actual costs for one fiscal year shall be included in each claim. Pursuant to Government
Code section 17561, subdivision (d)(1)(A), all claims for reimbursement of initial fiscal
year costs shall be submitted to the State Controller within 120 days of the issuance date
for the claiming instructions. :




If the total costs for a given year do not exceed $1,000, no reimbursement shall be |
allowed, except as otherwise allowed by Government Code sectlon 17564.

IV. REIMBURSABLE ACTIVITIES

To be eligible for mandated cost reimbursement for any fiscal year, only actual costs may
be claimed. Actual costs are those costs actually incurred to implement the mandated
activities. Actual costs must be traceable and supported by source documents that show
the validity of such costs, when they were incurred, and their relationship to the
reimbursable activities. A source document is a document created at or near the same
time the actual cost was incurred for the event or activity in question. Source documents
may include, but are not limited to, employee time records or time logs, sign-in sheets,
invoices, and receipts.

Evidence corroborating the source documents may include, but is not limited to,
worksheets, cost allocation reports (system generated), purchase orders, contracts,
agendas, calendars, and declarations. Declarations must include a certification or
declaration stating, “I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury under the laws of the
State of California that the foregoing is true and correct,” and must further comply with
the requirements of Code of Civil Procedure section 2015.5. Evidence corroborating the
source documents may include data relevant to the reimbursable activities otherwise in
compliance with local, state, and federal government requirements. However,

- corroborating documents cannot be substituted for source documents.

- The claimant is only allowed to claim and be reimbursed for increased costs for
reimbursable activities identified below.

Claimants may use time studies to support salary and benefit costs when an activity is
task-repetitive. Time study usage is subject toe the review and audit conducte4d by the
State Controller’s Office.

For each eligible claimant, the followmg activities are reimbursable-en-a-one-time-basis:
One—Tlme Act1v11:v

‘»__Amend the polling place notice sent to each voter who reglstered after the 29th
‘day prior to the electlon to include the following: information as to where the
voter can obtain a sample ballot and a ballot pamphlet prior to the election, a
statement indicating that those documents will be available at the polling place at
the time of the election, and the address of the Secretary of State's website and, if

_ applicable, of the county website where a sample.ballot may.be viewed. (Elec.
Code, § 13303, subd. (c), Stats. 2000, ch. 8§99.)

o Redesign and-implement-new election software used to amend the polhng place
- notice sent to each voter who registered between the 29" and 15" day prior to the
election pursuant to Elections Code section 13303, subdivision (c), as amended by
Statutes 2000, chapter 899. Actually sending the notices is not reimbursable.




o Modifyieatien-of the Registrar of Voters website to reflect the amendment to
Elections Code section 13303, subdivision (¢), by Statutes 2000, chapter 899 that
allows voters to register through the 15th day prior to an election..

V. CLAIM PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION

Each of the following cost elements must be identified for the reimbursable activities
identified in Section I'V of this document. Each reimbursable cost must be supported by
source documentation as described in Section IV. Additionally, each reimbursement
claim must be filed in a timely manner, »

A. Direct Cost Reporting

Direct costs are those costs incurred specifically for the relmbursable activities. The
following direct costs are eligible for reimbursement.

1. Salaries and Benefits

Report each employee implementing the reimbursable activities by name, job -
classification, and productive hourly rate (total wages and related benefits divided
by productive hours). Describe the specific reimbursable activities performed and
the hours devoted to each reimbursable activity performed.

2. Materials and Supplies

Report the cost of materials and supplies that have been consumed or expended
for the purpose of the reimbursable activities. Purchases shall be claimed at the
actual price after deducting discounts, rebates;-and allowances received by the
- claimant. Supplies that are withdrawn from inventory shall be charged onan .
. approprlate and recognized method of costing, consistently apphed

3. Contracted Services

Report the name of the contractor and services performed to implement the

- reimbursable activities. If the contractor bills for time and materials, report the
number of hours spent on the activities and all costs charged. If the contract is a
fixed price, report the services that were performed during the period covered by
the reimbursement claim. If the contract services are also used for purposes other
than the reimbursable activities, only the pro-rata portion of the services used to
implement the reimbursable activities can be claimed. Submit contract consultant
and attorney invoices with the claim and a description of the contract scope of
services. :
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4. Fixed Assets and Equipment

Report the purchase price paid for fixed assets and equipment (including
computers) necessary to implement the reimbursable activities. The purchase
price includes taxes, delivery costs, and installation costs. If the fixed asset or
equipment is also used for purposes other than the reimbursable activities, only
the pro-rata portion of the purchase price used to implement the reimbursable
activities can be claimed. - =

5. Travel

Report the name of the employee traveling for the purpose of the reimbursable
activities. Include the date of travel, destination point, the specific reimbursable
activity requiring travel, and related travel expenses reimbursed to the employee
in compliance with the rules of the local jurisdiction. Report employee travel
time according to the rules of cost element A.1, Salaries and Benefits, for each
applicable reimbursable activity.

B. Indirect Cost Rates

Indirect costs are costs that are incurred for a common or joint purpose, benefiting more
. than one program, and are not directly assignable to a particular department or program
without efforts disproportionate to the result achieved. Indirect costs may include both
(1) overhead costs of the unit performing the mandate; and (2) the costs of the central
government services distributed to the other departments based on a systematic and
rational basis through a cost allocation plan.

Compensation for indirect costs is eligible for reimbursement utilizing the procedure
provided in the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-87. Claimants
have the option of using 10% of direct labor, excluding fringe benefits, or preparing an
Indirect Cost Rate Proposal (ICRP) if the indirect cost rate claimed exceeds 10%.

If the claimant chooses to prepare an ICRP, both the direct costs (as defined and
described in OMB Circular A-87 Attachments A and B) and the indirect costs shall
exclude capital expenditures and unallowable costs (as defined and described in OMB
Circular A-87 Attachments A and B). However, unallowable costs must be included in
the direct costs if they represent activities to which indirect costs are properly allocable. -

The distribution base may be (1) total direct costs (excluding capital expenditures and
other distorting items, such as pass-through funds, major subcontracts, etc.), (2) direct
salaries and wages, or (3) another.base which results in an equitable distribution.

In calculating an ICRP, the claimant shiall have the choice of one of the following
methodologies: :

1. The allocation of allowable indirect costs (as defined and described in OMB
Circular A-87 Attachments A and B) shall be accomplished by (1) classifying
a department’s total costs for the base period as either direct or indirect, and
(2) dividing the total allowable indirect costs (net of applicable credits) by an
equitable distribution base. The result of this process is an indirect cost rate
which is used to distribute indiréct costs to mandates. The rate should be
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expressed as a percentage which the total amount allowable indirect costs
bears to the base selected; or

2. The allocation of allowable indirect costs (as defined and described in OMB
Circular A-87 Attachments A and B) shall be accomplished by (1) separating
a department into groups, such as divisions or sections, and then classifying
the division’s or section’s total costs for the base period as either direct or
indirect, and (2) dividing the total allowable indirect costs (net of apphcable :
credits) by an equitable distribution base. The result of this process is an
indirect cost rate that is used to distribute indirect costs to mandates. The rate
should be expressed as a percentage which the total amount allowable indirect
costs bears to the base selected.

VI. RECORD RETENTION

Pursuant to Government Code section 17558.5, subdivision (a), a reimbursement claim

for actual costs filed by a local agency or school district pursuant to this chapter’ is
subject to the initiation of an audit by the Controller no later than three years after the
date that the actual reimbursement claim is filed or last amended, whichever is later.
However, if no funds are appropriated or no payment is made to a claimant for the

_ program for the fiscal year for which the claim is filed, the time for the Controller to
initiate an audit shall commence to run from the date of initial payment of the claim. In
any case, an audit shall be completed not later than two years after the date that the audit
is commenced. All documents used to support the reimbursable activities, as described in
Section IV, must be retained during the period subject to audit. If an audit has been
initiated by the Controller during the period subject to audit, the retention period is
extended until the ultimate resolution of any audit findings.

VII. OFFSETTING REVENUES AND REIMBURSEMENTS

Any offsets the claimant experiences in the same program as a result of the same statutes
or executive orders found to contain the mandate shall be deducted from the costs
claimed. In addition, reimbursement for this mandate from any source, including but not
limited to, service fees collected, federal funds. and other state funds reeeived-from-any
£ede¥al—staterei—fma—leeal—seiﬁee shall be identified and deducted from thls clalm

VIII. STATE CONTROLLER’S CLAIMING INSTRUCTIONS

Pursuant to Government Code section 17558, subdivision (b), the Controller shall issue
claiming instructions for each mandate that requires state reimbursement not later than 60
days after receiving the adopted parameters and guidelines from the Commission, to
assist local agencies and school districts in claiming costs to be reimbursed. The -
claiming instructions shall be derived from the test claim decision and the parameters and
guidelines adopted by the Commission.

| Pursuant to Government Code section 17561, subd1v181on (d)( 12), issuance of the
claiming instructions shall constitute a notice of the right of the local agencies and school
districts to file reimbursement claims, based upon parameters and guidelines adopted by
the Commission. :

| ! This refers to Title 2, division 4, part 7, chapter 4 of the Government Code.
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IX. REMEDIES BEFORE THE COMMISSION

Upon request of a local agency or school district, the Commission shall review the ‘
claiming instructions issued by the State Controller or any other authorized state agency
for reimbursement of mandated costs pursuant to Government Code section 17571. If the
Commission determines that the claiming instructions do not conform to the parameters
~and guidelines, the Commission shall direct the Controller to modify the claiming

~ Instructions to conform to the parameters and guidelines as directed by the Commission.

In addition, requests may be made to amend parameters and guidelines pursuant to
Government Code section 17557, subdivision (d), and California Code of Regulations,
title 2, section 1183.2.

X.  LEGAL AND FACTUAL BASIS FOR THE PARAMETERS AND
GUIDELINES

The Statement of Decision is legally binding on ail parties and provides the legal and
factual basis for the parameters and guidelines. The support for the legal and factual
findings is found in the administrative record for the test claim. The administrative
record, including the Statement of Decision, is on file with the Commission.
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¥ : _ : ' Exhibit A

STATE OF GALIFORNIA : ) ARNOLD S8CHWA

COMMISSION ON STATE MANDATES
980 NINTH STREET, SUITE 300 '

SACAAMENTO, CA 85814

PHONE: (918) 323-3662

FAX: {918) 445-0278.

E-mall: csminfo@osm.ca.gov

'C.)__ctob_er 31,200"'6  - . : _ |

M, Allan P. Burdick ' i
MAXIMUS o -
4320 Auburn Blvd.; Suite 2000

Sacramento, CA 95841

And Affected State Agencies and Interested Parties (see attached mdiling Tist)

RE: * Adopted Statement of Decision
: Fifteen Day Close of Voter Regrsn ation, (01-TC-15)
County of Orange, Claimant
Elections Code Sectlons 2035, 2102, 2107 2119, 2154, 2155, 2187, 9094, 13300 13303,
and 13306 '
Statutes 2000, Chapter 899 (AB 1094)

Dear Mr, Burdick

The Commission on State Mandates -adopted the attached Statement of Decisionon

October 4, 2006, State law provides that reimbursement, if any, is‘ibject to Commission
‘approval of parameters and guidelines for reimbursement of the mandgtéd prografn; appr oval of
a statewide cost estimate; & specific leglslatlve appropriation for such purpose; & timely-filed
claim for 1ennbu1‘sement and ‘subsequent review of the claim by the State Controller’s Office.

Following is a description of the responsibilities of all partles and the Commission dunng the
' pa.tarnetem and guidelines phase. e

~Claimant’s Submission of Proposed Parameters and Guidelines. Pursuant to

- Goveriment Code section 17557 and California Code of Regulations, title 2,

" sections 1183.1 et seq,; the claimant is responsible for subnuttmg proposed parameters
and giiidelines by November 30, 2006, See Government Code‘séction 17557 and
California Code of Regulations, title 2, sections 1183.1 et seq. for guitiance in preparing

~ and filing a timely submission, Also, the claimant may propose a “reasonable : '

- reimbursement methodology,” & formula for reimbursing local agency ¢osts mandated by
the state. (See Gov. Code, § 17518.5 and Cal. Code Regs., tit.2, 1183.13.)

» Review of Proposed Parameters and Guidelines. Within ten days of receipt of
completed proposed parameters and guidelines, the Commission will send copies to the
Department of Finance, Office of the State Controller, affected state agencies, and
interested parties who are on the enclosed mailing list. Any recipient may propose a
“reasonable reimbursement methodology” pursuant to Government Code section
17518.5. All recipients will be given an opportunity to provide written comments or
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The attached Statement of Decision of the Comnussmn on State Mandates is hereby adopted in
the above-entltled matter, .
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STATEN[ENT OF DECISION

The Comrmssmn on State Mandates (“Commlssmn”) heard and decided this test claim during a

~ regularly scheduled hearing on October 4, 2006. Juhana. Gmur of Maximus appeared
representing the claimant, County of Orange. Also testtfymg were Neal Kelly, Orange County
Registrar of Voters, Deborah Seiler, Solano County Assistant Regmtrar of Voters, and Allan
Burdick, CSAC SB-90 Service. Carla Castafieda and Susan Geanacou appeared on behalf of the
Departiment of Finance (DOF). '

The law applicable to the Commission’s determination of a reimbursable state-mandated
program is article XIII B, section 6 of the California Constitution, Government Code section
17500 et seq., and related case law. :

The Con:umssmn adopted the staff analysus to partlally approve this test claim at the heaung by a
vote of 5-1, '

'Summary omedmgs - ' : - , e i'”.*"“"”“: e e

Claimant, County of Orange, filed this test claim on changes to the deadhne for voter registration
prior to an election, Prior law allowed voters to newly register to vote, reregistet, or change their
address with county elections officials, until the 29th day before an election. After that date,
voter registration closed until the conclusion of the upcoming election. Statutes 2000, chapter
899 amended Elections Code sections 2035, 2102, 2107, 2119, 2154, 2155, 2187, 9094, 13303
and 13306, and repealed and reenacted Elections Code section 13300, allowing new registrations -
or thanges to voter registrations through the 15th day prior to ati slection,” The claimant seeks
mandate reimbursement for costs incwrred to register voters from the 28th through the 15th day-
before-elections, such as for: mplementahon planning meetings; rev1smg tralmng programs;
holding an informational media campaign; responding to additional inquiries about the new law,
and prov1d111g additional personnel to accommodate the increased workload.

Generally, the Commission finds that most of the statutory arendments by Statutes 2000,
chapter 899, do not mandate a new proglam or hlgher level of service on county electtons
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- these code sections, as amended by Statutes 2000, chapter 899, constitute a reimbursable state~
mandated program. Following are some of the reimbursable activities or costs asserted - by the
claimant; :

o have internal planmng meetrngs, as well as meetmgs with the Secretary of State, in order
to make sure the changes were 1mplemented properly, :

P prmtmg, processing and mailing of postcards and add1t10na1 sample ballot pamphlets for -

“voters registering between the 28th day and up fo dnd mcludmg the 15th day ptior to the
- election; .

. rétrain personnel on new program, u1cludmg rev1s1ng trannng program, v1deos, and
manuals; _

e hold a media campaign to inform the publrc of the add1t1ona1 time to regtster and vote;
. e respond to addltronal media and pubhc inquiries about the new law;
» redesign and republish the sample .ballot and absentee voter materials;
e redesign and impleinent voter election software; |
. provide additional personnel to accomrnodate the increased workload,;

. ,ohange the method of delivery rosters to the polls, including express delivery and
dispatch; : '

o notify those who registered too late
. complete addltronal steps in orderto conduct the election.

.~ Inresponse to DOF’s July 2002 comments on the test claim filing, described below, claimant
drsputes DOF’s disagreements -with the reimbursable activities identified, with the exception of
agreeing that software redesign is a ofie-time activity, and reasserts that all of activities identified
are necessary, to implement the test claim legislation, or are the most reasonable method to
comply.

Written eomments on the draft staff analysrs were reeerved on September 15, 2006 and are
discussed in the findings below. . ‘

Interested Party Positions

On September 18, 2006, a late ﬁlmg was received from the County of Sacramento, describing
the impact that changing the timeframe for registration. prior to an election has had on county
registrars and argues that this change has méandated an increased level of service resulting ina -
reimbursable state-mandated program. The County of Sacramento comments, page one, state:

This shortened time frame clearly provides for a higher level of service from that

" previously required, in that the deadline to register to vote for a.ny election was
shortened from E-29 days prior to any election to E-15 days prior to the election.
This creates a new window of time in which eligible citizens can qualify to vote
for any specific election. And, in order to implement this legrslatron, county
election offices have had to drastically increase the level of service provided to

* the public in order to provide the legally required voting material to both the voter

and the polling place on eleetlon day.
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- COMMISSION FINDINGS

The courts have found that artlcle XTI B, section 6, of the California Constitution? recognizes
. the state constitutional restrictions on.the powers of local government to tax and spend. 3 g

purpose is to preclude the state from shlﬁmg finaneial respons1b111ty for-carrying out -

governmental functions to local agencies, which are ‘ill equipped”to'assume increased ﬁnancual
- reSPOHSlbllltleS because of the taxing and spending litnitations that articles-XI1I A and XTI B
impose.” A test claim statute or executive order may impose a reimbursable state—mandated
progtam if it orders or commands a local agency ot school district to engage inen act1V1ty OF i
task.” In addition, the requu'ed activity or task must be new, constxtutmg a “new program,” or it
must create a “higher level of service” over the previously required level of service.®

The courts have defined a “pro gram” subject to article XIII B, section 6, of the Callfonna
Constitution, as one that carries out the govemmental function of p1ov1dmg public services, or a
law that imposes unique requiremerits on local agencies or scliool distriets to ‘implement a state
policy, but does-not apply generally to all residents afid entities in the state.” To determine if the
progtain is new-or imposes a higher level of service, the test claim legislation must be compared
with the le%al réquirements in effect immediately before the enactrhent of the test ¢laim
legislation, “hlgher level of servwe” occurs when.the-new “requirements were mtended to
provide an enhanced service to the public.”®

* 2 Article XIII B, section 6, subdivisien (a), provides: (a) ‘Whenever the Legislature or any state
-agency mandates anew program or higher level of service on any local government, the state

" shall prowde a subvention of funds to reimburse that local government for the costs of the -

program or increased level of service, except that the Legislature may, but need not, prov1de a

* subvention of funds for the following mandates (1) Legislative mandates requested by the local-

agency affected. (2) Legislation defining a new crime or changing an existing definition of a

crime. (3) Legislative mandates enacted prior to J anuery 1, 1975, or executive orders or

reguldtions initially implementing leglslatlon enacted prior to January 1;-1975,

* Department of F inance v. Commzs;;on on State Mandates (Kern Hzgh School Dz.s't ) (2003)30

" Cal.4th 727,735,

* County of San Diego v. State of Calzforma (1997) 15 Cal.4th 68, 81.
’ Long Beaoh Uny?gd School Dist. v. State of California (1990) 225 Cal.App.3d 155, 174.

§ San Diego Unified School Dist. v. Commission on State Mandates (2004) 33 Cal.4th 859, 878,
(San Diego Unified School Dist. ) Lucia Mar Uny“ ed School Dist, v. Honig (1988) 44 Cal:3d
830, 835 (Lucia Mar).

7 San Diego Unified School Dist., supra, 33 Cal.4th 859, 874-875 (1eafﬁrmlng the test set out in
County of Los.Angéles v. State of California (1987) 43 Cal.3d 46, 56 see also Lucia Mar, supra,
44 Cal.3d 830, 835.)

B San Diego Umﬁed School Dist,, supra, 33 Cal 4th 859, 878; Lucza Mar, supra, 44 Cal. 3d 830
835,

~* San Diego UnzﬁedSchoolDz.s't supra, 33 Cal.4th 859, 878.
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- State af California, the California Sup:zem_e Court deﬁned the word “program” \mthm the
meaning of article XIII B, sectioti6as' oiig thit-carries out the governmental function of
providing a service to the publig; 6 Ia "s;\zv'htg_h, -to implement a state policy, impose umque

reqturements on local governni:ét F 1didh hot a'pﬁly generally to all residents and entities in the
state.'” The court has held that's; i Y ﬁh"of the eHindings is necessary. 16

,hm o 'L A v.{iwi;ﬁ

- The Comxmsswn finds that regqste ring-voters. irgposes a program within the meamng of article
' XIII B, section 6 of the Cahfo, ,,.,4_Gonst1tut10n under both tests. County elections officials
provide a service toithe me ers"'" f the public who register to vote. The test claim legislation
alsorequires local elections Qfﬁclals to engage in administrative activities.solely applicable to
local government, thereby imposing. unique requirements itpon counties that do not apply
generally to all residents and entities of the state, -

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the test claim legislation constitutes a “pmgram” and,
thus, may be subject to subvention pursuant to article XIII B, section 6 of the California
Constitution if'the legislation also mandates a new program or higher level of service, and costs
‘mandated by the state. . . :

Issue 2: Does the test claim legmlatlon mandate 4 new program or hlgher level of
. service on counties within the meaning of artlcle XI]I B, sectlon 6 of the -
California Constitution? '

- Test claun legislation mandates a new p1o gram or higher level of service within an existmg
program. when it compels a local agency of school district to perform activities not prewously
requu'ed The couits Have delimed a “hlgher Ievel of sérvice” in conjunction withi the phrase
“néw program” to give the subvention requiremént of article XIII B, section 6 meaning.
Accordmgly, ‘it is apparent that the subventlon 1equn'ernent for increased or higher lével of
" service is directed to state-mandated increasés in the services provided by lo¢al agencies in
e)ustmg programs.” 8 A statite or exscutive order mandates a reimbursable’ “hlgher level of *
service” when the statute or executive order; as compared to the legal requirements in&ffect -
" immediately before the enactment of the test claim legislation, i moreases the actual level of
governmental service to the public p1ov1ded in the existing program

7 Electzan.s' Code Sectzan.s' 2035 2] 02 2] 07 21 ]9 and 21 54

Elections Code section'2035 formerly prov1ded that a voter regwtered in Cahforma who moves
during the last 28 days beforé an election shall be entitled to vote in the précinet where they were
last properly registered. The amendment by Statutes 2000, chapter 899 changed that penod to

- the last 14 days before an electmn

' County of Las Angeles supra, 43 Cal 3d at page 56 :
'8 Carmel Valley Fire Protection Dist. v. State of California (1987) 190 Cal. App 3d 521, 537.
7 Luia Mar Utiified School Dist., supra, 44 Cal.3d 830, 836.

18 County of Los Angeles, supra, 43 Cal, 3d 46, 56; San Dzego Umf ed School Dzst/ ict, .s'upf a, 33
. Cal.4th 859, 874.

1% San Diego Umﬁed School Dist,, supra, 33 Cal.4th 859, 878; Lucia Mar, supra, 44 Cal.3d 830,
835. :
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In response to the test claim allegations, DOF argues:

[C]laimants cite ... costs for voters who registered between the 28th day and the
15th day prior to the election, necessitating additional staff, printing; processmg
and mailing costs,. We have two objections with this assumptiens. First, there i 1s.
~ no evidence that the test claim legislation resulted in an increasesef:persons =.4{
. legistering to vote. The test claim legislation could have mel_:eiy-:shifted the oos‘t
""" from before the 29th day until after the 29th and before the 14th. day prior to an
election, as people may have waited longer to reglster Th;s would not constitute
new costs since local agencies would have had to incur those costs ah'eady under
. priorlaw.

The Commission finds that the code sections as amended do not mandate a negw program or
highier level of service on county elections officials within the meaning of article XIII: B, section -
6 as determined by the courts. Processmg and accepting voter registration affidavits and changes
of address are not newly required under the Elections Code. County elections officials have been
required to perform these activitiés long before the endctment of Statutes 2000, chapter 899, 20
The test-claim allégations genérally request reimbursement for increaged stafﬁng expenses,
developing and' conducting training, and holding planning meetlngs these are not new activities
directly required by the test claim legislation, but instead are costs that the claimant is associating
with the changed timeframes. The Commission does not dispute the claimant’s allégations that
the changed timeframeés impose a burden on the way business is conducted by electioris officials
during the. weeks before an election, and that there afe likely associated costs; but the test claim
legislation itself did not requ1re the activities alleged iri the manner requu'ed for reunbursement
under mandates laW :

The courts have consistently held that i mcreases in the cost’ ‘of an existing program, ars not »
sibject to reimbursement as state-mandated programs or hlgher levels of service within ﬂ1e
mesaning of artlole XII B, section 6. . :

In 1987, the California Supreme Court decided County of Los Angeles v. State of Calzforma,

supra, 43 Cal.3d 46, and, for the first time, defined & “ new program or higher level of service”

within the meaning of article XIII B, sect1on 6. Counties were seeking the costs incurred as a

result of legislation that required local agencies to provide the same ihcreased level of workers’ ,

- compensation beneﬁts {o-their employees as pnvate individuals or organizations, The Supreme - - -
Court recognized that workets’ compensation is not a new prograrii and, thus, determined
whether the legislation imposed-a higher level of service on local agencies. Although the‘court

' defined a “program” to include “laws which; to implement a staté policy, impose unique

- requirements on local governments;” the court emphasized that a.new program-or higher level of.

20 The voter registration timelines were last substantively amended following the decision in
Young v. Gnoss (1972) 7-Cal.3d 18, in which the California Supreme Court found the 54-day
residency requirement and oorrespondmg voter reg1st1at10n deadlines unconstitutional and
declared 30 days to be the maximum voter reg1s1:rat1on restriction permissible under a
reasonableness standard. :
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processing and mailing of postcards, and/or pnntmg, processrng and rnallmg of
additional sample ballot pamphlets.” L

4. An increase numiber of’ Voters needed assistance either in person
telephone. . A el

Tk
tiEt C

COfICEring - wfd

LY

5. A methodology was developed for addressmg voter complamts‘

_ ,regrstrauon S _ | :
6. It was neoessary to change the method by which rosters are delivred to the
: polls moludmg express delivery and dispatch. "

7. Because of the sibstantial changes, regular, temporary permanent employees,
and poll workers had to be retrained. This resulted in the coordination and
planning for the trammg, training instruction for the trainers, condycting the
fraining classes, revising training Vldeos producing traunng aids, and revising
the training manual. ~ . :

8. In order that votersmot be confused about the changes, press releases were
prepared, development of educational material for the sample ballot pamphiet
and audio visual instructions to both voters and staff,

At the October 4, 2006 Commission hearing, testimony was heard from the claiment’s
representatives, a8 well as a representative from an interested party, the Solano County Assistant
Registrar of Voters, Deborah Seiler. Ms. Seiler testified that pre-eleotron activities must be
performed in a different- matiner due to the test claim statute: : :

First of all, one of the things that we're doing at the time that we Would ordi.narily

be finished with voter fegistration, when it was formerly at 29 days before the '
election, after that time period, what we were doing is we were putting together

the rosters of voters that go, out to the polling places. Those rosters we were

putting together in time.to give to our precinot inspectors to go out to the pollmg
places. :

Now, because of the late registrations, we're not able to compile the rosters at the

time that we need to get them-out to the precinct inspectors. So we've had to o
come up with alternate methods of delivering those rosters rather than just when -~ .
the inspectors come in for the training class. So we now have either personal '
delivery or other-mechanisms where staff is delivering it or we have rovmg

inspectors that we have to hire to send out those rosters.

The other issue with the rosters is that particularly in very busy elections - and a
number of counties experienced this in the November of 2004 election, very hotly
contested election -- the registration levels were off the charts for all of us. And
we had tremendous difficulty getting ~- due to the later close of registration, we
had tremendous difficulty even getting those names entered into‘our files and
gettmg those names on the rosters, .

25 This act1v1ty appears to be connected to Elections Code sections 2155 13303, and 13306
which are-discussed separately below.
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So, now, we send them their:first: ballot Then they rereg1ster to vote at the
fifteen-day close. Anywe:have to-send them a second ballot -- a second absentee
ballot So we have ta:go back - and obv1ously, we can't let them vote twice.

So now we're going into
sure that these absentee

'huge retneval storage, tracking process, to make

1s who arg, bemg able to register at a later point in -
act'on our whole process And in add1t10n, this is _]ust one | -
more thing that. e" 1es, over into our canvass process, because these are all thmgs
that we have to aecount for in the canvass process. :

‘The plam language of Statutes 2000, chapter 899, as it. amended Elections Code sectlons 2035,

2102, 2107 2119, and 2154, does not require counties to carry out any of the new activities as -

- alleged.® Instead, counties are required to perform the same activities they have long performed .
— accepting new voter registrations and changes of address. If the test claim legislation explicitly
_required any new activities to be performed on the part of county elections officials, alleged
activities such as training, preparing press releases, and hiring additional employees could be
examined at the parameters and guidelines phase.of the test clann process to-determine whether .
they are a 1easonab1e method of complying with the tandate.’! However, there must first be a
finding of a reimbursable state-mandated activity based on the statutory language of the test
claim l¢ ‘g1slatlon in order to reach the other issues in the parameters and guldehnes The
Commisgion finds thaf the amendments by Statutes 2000, chapter 899 to Elections Code sections
2035, 2102, 2107, 2119, and 2154 do not mandate a new program of higher level of service on
counties.

Elections Code Section 2157: . _ . K o

Elections Code section 2155 requlres county electlons officiels to send voter notiﬁcanon forms
to the voter “[u]pon receipt of a properly executed affidavit of registration or address correction
notice.” One sentence on this form was changed by Statutes 2000, chapter 899 to read “you may
vyote in any election held 15 or more days after.the date shown on the reverse side of this card.”
If county elections officials had to change these cards in response to the test claim leglslatlon, o
- this would have met the legal standards for finding a new program or higher level of service, at
least for a one-time activity of amending and reprmtmg the cards. However, the very next 4 )
section in the code, Elections Code section 2156; requires that:

The Secr retary of State shall print, or cause to be printed, the blanlc forms of the
voter notification prescribed by Section 2155. The Secretary of State shall supply
the forms to the county elections official i in quantltles and at times requested by -
the county electlons official. o :

2 October 4, 2006 Commission Hearing Transcript, pages- 24-28.

- 29 “If the terms of the statute are unambiguous, the court presumes the lawmalcers meant what'
they said, and the plain méaning of the language governs,” (Estate of Griswold (2001)
25 Cal.4th 904, 911.) . :

3. County of Los Angeles, supra, 110 Cal. App.4th 1176 1189
31 California Code of regulatlons, title 2, section 1183.1, subd1v151on (a)(4)
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Elections Code Section 13303

899 (AB 1094) passed in the same session. Thé legislation specified that in the event that both -
statutes Were chaptered, and Assembly Bill 1094 was the one enacted last, sectiqn 11.5 of

. Statutes 2000, chapter 899 prevailed. .

In Maﬁiﬁed Primary Election, the Commission found that Elections.Code s_e:ction"13 102, - ,
_.Subdivision (b), as amended by Statutes 2000, chapter 898, requires county elections officials to ,

engage in a new activity to “Allow voters who. declined to state a party affiliation to vote a.party
ballot if the political party, by party rule dily noticed to the Secretary of State, authorizes such a

“person to do 80.” Any activity required by Elections Code section:13300, subdivision (c), for

allowing decline-to-state voters to request partisan primary ballots at the polls, is already part of
the test claim on the earlier-enacted Statutes 2000, chapter 898, ‘and is therefore not new, =~
Activities can be attributed to Elections Code section 13102, subdivision (b), and reimbursement
can be sought under the Modified Primary Election paraieters and gnidelines, when adopted.

'Therefore, the Comrhission finds that the amendment to Elections Code section 13300 by

Statiites 2000, chapter 899, does not mandate a new prograin or higher level of service.

Elections-Code section 13303 follows, as amended by Statutes 2000, cllapfer 899 -- indicated in

underline and strikethrough below: -

(8) For each election, each appropriate elections official shall cause to be printed, )
. 6n plain white paper or tinted paper, without watermark, at least as many copies
of the form of'ballot proyided for use in each veting precinct as there are voters in .-
" the precinct. These copies shall be designated “sample ballot” upon their face and
hall be identical to the official ballots used in the election, except as otherwise
provided by law. A sample batlot shall be mailed, postage prepaid, te-each-voter
-not more than 40 nor less than 21 days before ilie election to each voter who is

registered at least 29 days prior to the election. _ o

(b) The elections official shall send notice of the polling place to each voter with

the sample ballot. Only official matter shall be sent out with the sample ballot'as .-

provided by law. =~ = ~ R '_

c) The electi6ns official shall send notice of the polling ) each vot

registered after the 20th day prior fo the election and i eligible to participate in

. the ] also include information & to where the voter can
obtain & samble ballot and & ballot pamphlet prior to the election; a statement -

- indicating that those documents will be available at the polling place at the time of
the election, and the address of the Sectetary of State's website and, if app licable, -
of the county website where a sample ballot may be viewet. : '

© At page 4 of the test claim filing, claimaint alleges that “Thosé 'who’régistere.d‘late' were entitle'd

to notification, and an additional mailing was required.” DOF did not dispute this ellegation in
its comments on the test claim filing, L o '

The prior law of Elections Code section 13303, subdivision (b), already required thiat an -

“elections official shall send notice of the polling place to each voter with the sample ballot.” In

addition, Elections Code section 13306, discussed further below, has long provided that
“Notwithstanding Sections 13300, 13301, 13303, and 13307, sample ballots and candidates'
statements need not be mailed to voters who registered after the 54th day before an election, but

- _ Statement of Decision
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inquiring as to why they did not receive a samplé:ballet pamphlet. This required additional staff
time to explain to the voters why they did notit¢gsive:the sample ballot pamphlet.”

Fitst, the Commission notes that the test cla.t‘;t 101;_1 does not prohzbzt counties froni
sending the ballot pamphlets to these reg1st1'j' ust does Hot requ1re it. Receiving phone
calls from the public is.not “mandated” by.the: 188 laim. Iegrslatton, it is part of the business of
being a public agency. If the test claim legln‘l i _xph01t1y reqmred any new activities to be
performed on the.part of county election 3 respondmg to public inquiries could be
examined at the paiameters and guldehne%}@ihase to determine whether the requested activities

are a reasonable method of complying wtth_t‘le mandate. (Cal. Code of Regs., tit. 2, § 1183.1,

* subd. (a)(4).) However, there must first be'h ﬁndmg of a reimbursable state-mandated activity in
order to reach the issue in parameters and guidelines. The Commission finds that the plain
language of the amendment to Elections Code section 13306 does not mandate a new pro gram or-

higher level of service on county elections officials.

Issue 3: Does the test claim legislation impose “costs mandated by the state” within
the meaning of Government Code sections 17514 and 175567 .

Rennbursement under article XIII B, section 6 is required only if any new program or 1nghe1-

" level of service is also found to impose “costs 'mandated by the state.” Government Code

section 17514 defines “costs mandated by the state” as any increased cost a local agency is

" required to incur as a result of a statute that mandates a new program or higher level of service.
The claitnant estimated: costs of $200 or' more for the test claim allegations, which was the
statutory threshold at the time the test claim was filed. The claimant also stated that none of the
" Government Code section 17556 exceptions apply. For the one-time activity listed in the
conclusion below, the Commission agrees and finds accordingly that it imposes costs mandated

", by the state upon coumties within the meamng of Government Code section 17514,

CONCLUSION

The Comrmssmn concludes that Statutes 2000, chapter 899 as it amended Electlons Code -
~section 13303, subdivision (c), mandates a new program or higher level of service on counties
within the meaning of article XIII B, section 6-of the California Constitution, and imposes costs
mandated by the state pursuant to Government Code sectmn 175 14,.for the followmg one-tlme

' act1v1ty :

. Amend the poIlulg place not1ce sent to each vote1 who 1eg1stered afte1 the 29th day p1'101' '
to the election, to include the followmg information as to where the voter can obtain a
sample ballot and a ballot pamphlet prior to the election, a statement indicating that those

- documents will be available at the polling place at the-time of the election, and the
address of the Secretary of State's website and, if applicable, of the county website where
a sample ballot may be viewed. (Elec. Code, § 13303, subd. (c).)* :

The other amendments by Statutes 2000 chapter 899 are not subject to article XIII B, section 6
of the California Constttutlon, or do not mandate a new program or thher level of service, and
are denied.

. 3 As amended by Statutes 2000, chapter 899, operative J anue.t'y 1,2001.

) Statement of Decision
Fifteen Day Close of Voter Regz.s'n ation (01-TC-15)
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in the court decision which wou;d determine thaﬁ it is

constitutional, and since the statute allows for peopler
" to file within one year after ihcurring costs, that if
- somebody did incur costs, they may be returning to the

' Commission for that particular point. "But at this time,

there were no agencies.that we know of that incurred. any
costs that were awarded by an'arbitrator.

Thank'you.

'CHAIR BROWN: No comments?

MR. HENDRICKSON: No. They have said everything
that needs to be said on our behalf. -

Thank you.

CHAIR BROWN: The Department of Finance?

MS. GEANACOU: Yes. Susan Geénacou, ﬁepartment
of Finance. | |

The-Department supports the request for

~ reconsideration so that the issues raised in the request

can be fully-addresséd by the staff.

CHAIR BROWN: Are there any questions of any

" members?

-(No audible résponse)
CHAIR BROWN: If not, I'd certainly entertain a
motiomn.
| MEMBER WALSH: Move to recoﬁsidér.

CHAIR BROWN: Second?

D‘aniel P.Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482 -
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MEMBER WORTHLEY: Second.

CHAIR BROWN: All those in favor, say "aye."
- (A chorus of Tayes" waé heard.)
CHAIR BROWN: Opposed?

(No audible response)

CHAIR BROWN: No?

Abstentions?

(No audible response)
- CHAIR BROWN: The motion passes.
MR. BURDICK: Tﬁank yourvéry much.
MS. GMUR: Thank. you.

MS. HIGASHI: This brings us to the first test

-claim on today's agenda, Item 5. This item will be

presented by Commission Counsel Katherine Tokarski.
MS. TOKARSKI: Good afternoon. This item is
Fifteen-Day Close of Voter Registration.

Prior law allowed votars to newly register to

~ vote, réregister, or change their address with éounty

elections officials until the twenty—ninth'day before .

‘an election. After that date, voter reglstration closed

until the conclusion of the upcoming-election,

Statutes 2000, Cﬁapter 899; aménded ﬁhe Elections.Code,
allowing'new registr;tions or-changes to voter
registrations through the fifteenth day prior to

an election.

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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The claimant seeks mandate reimbursement.for
costsvincurred to regis£er voters from the twenty-eighth
through the fifteenth déy before elections: such as- for
imp;ementation planning'meetings,rrevising,fxaininq.
programs, ﬁoldingran ipformational media campaign,
rgsponding to adaitionél inquiries_about the new law, and
pfoﬁiding additional personnel to accommodate the
increased workload.

Staff finds that ﬁost of the étatutory
amepdments by Statutes'ZOOO, Chapter 899, do not mandate
a new program or higher level of serviée on elections
officiais within the meaning of Articie.XIII B,

Section 6. . Processing and accepting voter registration

affidavits and'changeé of address are not newly required

"under the elections code. Elections officials have been

required to perform these activities long before the

- enactment of Statutes of 2000, Chapter 899.:

~ Staff finds that the amendment to Elections. Code

séction 13303, subdivision (c), added information to a
preexisting poliing'place noﬁice, which dées érévide a
higherrlevel of service to the pubiic within an existing
program. | |
Following the release of the final staff
analysis, staff received‘;ate filings from the claimant

and from the County of Sacramento. Those documents,

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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along with the supplemental staff.ahalysis, are in your
binders. |
.Staff recommends that fhe Commissionadop£ this'_

analysis and partially approve'£he test claim as
described in fhe conclusion at.page 16 of the fiﬁal staff
analysis. |

Will the parties and representatives please
state your names for the record? |

MS. GMUR: Juliana-Gﬁur on behalf_of'the County
of Orange. |
77 MS. SEILER: Deﬁorah Seiler on behalf of Solano
County.

MR. KELLEY: Neal Kelley, Registrar of Voters
for Orange County. |

MS. GEANACOU: Susan Geanacou, Department of

Finance.

. MS. CASTAREDA: .Carla éas;aﬁeda; Department of

Finance. _ | |

MS. GMUR: Commissioners --

CHAIR BROWN:' Okay, proceed.

MS. GMUR: Thank you. so much.

All right, generally, when we come before you,
.there.a;e.always two things we're looking for: Either
‘a new program or a higﬁer 1evel of service under an

‘existing program.

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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In this céée; staff is.éaying that it's not a
higher level-of'sefvice; it's_higher'costs. .It‘s the
same program, the same services, higher costs. And they
cite case law.: And the case law talkslabout_the fact
tha£ higher costs7by themselves are not reimbursable.
But those higher costs in those two cases were regarding
general workers' compensation benefits and death
benefifs.

Now, the registrars of voters, they're not in
the business of handing out benefits; They are in the
business of handling elections. And so the staff points

to that and says, "There's nothing new here. Registrar

of voters, this is what you do. You're just doing more

of what you normélly do. Nothing new."

But if you extend that, you coﬁld say that peace

officers,.they do nothing new. They investigate, they
take reports. Mental health c;inicians,-mental-heélth
dépérfménts,rthey do nothing new. They provide meﬁtél
health services. School .districts, education services,
administer récordé,-tes£s. Citieé, éounties; £he§ -
pfovide services. So there‘s,nothing new under the sun.
But4I feel for the staff on this because this

one is really hard to conceptualize. A test claimant

‘comes befo;e you. It's usually pretty clear: They're

looking for the "who" -- Who gets the service? Who is

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CS_B, Inc. 916.682.9482
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providing the'servipe? -- or the "what" ~-- What form are

we filling out? What form or prbéess must we follow? 1In

. this case, it's neither the "who" nor the "what," it's

" the "when."

Now, it's kind of like somebody running to catch
an airplane. If they came up with a new rule that said

you don't -have to board at the gate; you can wait until

the plane has been taxied out. They're on the runway.

We'll wheel some stairs out there, and you can jgmp on
board.

Now, in that case, the’Départment of Finance
would say, "Where aré the new passenéers? It's the same-
list of passengers. It's just spread over a longer
per;od of.time." Because that's kind of what they've
said in-this case: Where are the new voters? .

But that's concentrating oﬂ the "who" again and. not the
"when. " |
| For those peaple on board that airpléne, that

crew, they've got certain things they have to do before

‘takeoff. And for them, the big issue is not that there

are passengers on board, but when the passengers come on
boéfd. |

And sd, too, for our election folks here; they
are providing a higher level of Service based on, yes, a

very small change in the law. But if you work in an area

Daniel P. Feldliaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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that is és calendar-driven and timeline—dépendent:as :
their world iéL then that small change is definitély a
higher level of service.

I'm going to introduce tovyéulSome fQiks now who
can actualiy épeak on thaﬁ-more'than I can..

Mr. Neal Kelley, he is our test claimant from
the County; but we're going to leéd off with Deborah
Seiler..'She is hére and she is from the County of
Solano, and she will tell you about thatvhigher level of
service tﬁat she has had to pfovide. |

MS. SEILER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Members of
the Commission. I'm Deborah Séiier. I'm the.assistant
registrar of voters in the County of Solano; and.I also
serve as co-chair of our Califorﬁia Association of Clerks
and Election Officials legislative committee.

'Actually, my backggéuna; I have a éubstantial
background with the State. I was the assistant to the
Secretary éf éfate fbrréieétioﬁé éﬁarpolifié;iiréfdémr
for -—- I was in the Secretary of State's office for

eleven years and served as the chief elections person in

that office.

I was also the chief consultant to the Assembly
Elections and Reapportionment Committee, and served as
one of the commissioners to the State's Fair Political

Practices Commission. I was appointed by former

Daniel P. Féldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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Secretary of Stéte,'March Fong Eu.
I've also been the editor and publisher of a

monthly newsletter on eléction issues for about ten

" years... I no longer do -the newsletter.

So I do have a'substahtial backgroun&‘and, in
ad&ition, have served on many international election
obsefvation missions throughout the world.

Sq I have been with.Soléno'County now for two
years. And I'd'like.tb speék to this issue of the higher
level of service.

I guess i would liken it to'é éfream running
into the ocean. - If you all of a sudden put é dam in the
stream, the stream is still going to the ocean, bﬁt it's
going to the oceanvin a significantly different fashipn.

And the effect of this close of registration being set

to what we call "E-minus" -~ we work in "E-minus"

~states -- being set at'E#minus—IS,:dr 15 days before the

eiection, has a profound effect oﬁ our offices in a
number df Very'specificAa:east

First of~all,‘one'of the things that we're doiﬁg ,
at the time that we would ordinarily be finished with
voter registration, when it Was formerly at 29 days
before the election, after that time period, what we.wére
doing is we were putting together the foSters of voters

that go out to the pélling places. Those rosters we were:

- Daniiel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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18

putting together.in time to give to our precinct
inspectors to go out to the polling places.

Now, because of the latg registrations, we're
not able. to compile the ;ostéfs af the time that we need
fo getrthém out to.thé precinct iﬁspectofs. So we've had
to come up with alternate methods of»deliVering those

rosters rather than just when the inspectors come in for

the tfaining class.. So we now have either personal

delivery or other mechanisms where staff is delivering it

or we have roving inspectors that we have to hire to send

out those rosters.

The other issue with the rosters is that
particularly in very busy elections -- and a number of
counties experienced this in the November of 2004

election, very hotly contested election ~- the

registration levels were off the charts for all of us.

And ‘we had tremendous difficulty getting -- due to the -

‘later close of registration, we had tremendous difficulty

~even getting those names entered into our files and

getting those names on the rosters.

In some cases, we did not. 1In some cases, the

‘counties failed to get the names on the rosters.

The consequence of that was that voters came into the

polling place and had to vote provisional ballots,'which

'is the requirement under the law for a person whose name

~ Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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is not on the roster.
So that provisional voting process thén'actually
contributed to the amount of time that it took us to

perform the canvass and the amount of staff that we had

| to.havé.

One of the big effects of this later close Qf
registration, too, is on the absentee ballot processing.

Ordinarily, our super&isbrs and lead people in
the absentee processing area -- in the voter registration
area, excuse me -- would sort of.morph into thé absentee

processing area. So thercurtain would fall at 29 dayé

‘before the election, and then that 29 days before the

election is also the commencement of the absentee voting
period. And so then that staff would finish up with the

voter registration and then.go-in and start processing,

_getting the absentees out in the mail and procéssing

| those that had returned.

No'longer can the same staff be used for the

absentee voting'process.' We have to have a whole new .set

of people;, managers, supervisors, and expertise now to

come in and do the'absentee processing because our votér
regiétration people who had dQne it in the past are busy.
They{rerstill engaged iﬁ voter registration écfivities.
So that's.had a huge influence on our whole sfaffing

process.

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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-they do.

181

Oﬁe of fﬁé‘biggéét impacts also with reépect to
the absentee process is that now we have a setup -- as a
result of this ﬂew law, we have a situation where the.
absentee voting period starts before the close of-
registrafion.- -

What does that mean for‘votef registration? It
means that a person who is, for example, a permanent |
absentee voter -- and we have many more permanent
absentee voters now than we used to. In Solano County,
it's up to almost 40.percent of our electorate who &otes
absentee. So-you've got all of these people to whom we
éend at 29 days, because that's the beginning of the"
absentee period, we send them their perménent absentee
ballot.

At E-minus-15, between 29 days and 15 days,
those:samg people can move and reregister to yote} and
éo, now, we send them their First ballot. Thénr
they reregister to vote-at the fifteén—day close. Any we

have to send them a secpnd ballot: -- a second absentee

ballot. So we have to go back -- and, obviously, we

can't let them vote twice. '
So now we're going. into this huge retrieval,
storage, tracking process, to make sure that these

absentee voters who are being able to register at a later

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, iﬁc. 916.682.9482
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point in time are not duplicate voters.

So this is a major impact on our whole process.

"And in addition, this is just one more thing that

" carries over into our canvass process, because these are

all things that we have to account for in the canvass

- process.

So those are a few examples of the profound

impact that this change has really had on our bpération.'

MR. KELLEY: Good affernoon, Mr. Chair and‘
fellow Commission Members. Thank you for the opportunity
to speak today. W ’

Ms. Seiler and coqnsel have made some persuasive
argﬁments. I'm afraid T don't haVe.any of the Qreat |
analogies that théy had for you, but it's kind of a
little bit dry for you.

 H_I wanted to go over just a fewrthings that we

have done since the implementation of this fifteen-day

'change.

We ﬁotify every'votef who registers, aé Deborah
pointed out, from E—28'to.E—15, via a postcard, where
they can obtain a sample ballot, and Ehat their
registration was coﬁpleted.

We also have hired additional staff to process
thosé.registration forms. And Deborah touched on thét'

just 'a little bit.

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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think will reglster durlng that tlme perlod

‘In the presidential vote for Orange County, we
processed 46,000 registration forms from E-28 to E-15..
And that was significant because we had to-bring-on:aj

tremendous amount of extra help and,additionel staff to

cover that increase in registration.

Now, you could probably make the argument'thet
perhaps those individuals would have registered before
E—28,.but I think_a lot of them now wait until that time
period juet before,E;lShto register. So that'e been a
significant impact.

.Also,.the printing ef sample hallots.- Because
we mqst provide sample ballots for ail of those who
register late, we have to eseentially make a guess as to
how many individuals are going to register so that.we can
print the sample ballot. So that'e an increased cost to ‘

provide enough sample ballots for those individuale we

In addition to all of that, we've incurred a

substantlal amount of overtime for all the reasons

‘Seiler p01nted out, not just inputting that data in
those.reglstratlonVforms, but making sure during the
canVass.period that we're covering all the issues she
brought up. In addition to those individuals who change
their registration and want a different type of ballot,-

that's significant, and that happens quite a bit in

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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Orange County.
 So witﬁ that, I want to thank ydu for the time.
CHAIR BROWN: Okay,. thank you véfy much.
The Department of Finance?
,MS. CASTANEﬁA: Carla Castafieda, the Départment
of Finance. |
We concur with the staff anéiysis. We
understaﬁd that the crunch timeline of changinglfhe
deadline‘from thé 29th to the 15th;.bu£ we do 5elieve
that all the activi&ies are still the same with the
exception of amending that notice go let voters'know

where they're going and where they can get sample

- ballots.

MS. GEANACOU: 1If I may, Chair?

Susan Geanacou, Department of Finance.

Just one comment I wish to add, is that the

- manner of the county's adjustment to performing their

‘preexisting preelection duties are not mandated by the

test claim statutes. That's, I think, something that

"needs to be emphasized for the Commission members'today.

They did point out some examples of adjustments they'd
made, put those adjustments are not mandated by the test
claim statutes.

CHAIR .BROWN: Thank you.-

~ Questions of the Members?

~ Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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- MEMBER WORTHLEY: I checked with our registrar,

. and she had a similar story from what we've heard here

this morning about the need for overtime help.

To me, this is.a very simple iéSue. If.I hired
sOmebody whose one and only job was to take in voter .
registration applications, and I hired them the day after
an election, and their - job ran from then until the 28th
day prior to the election, I would pay that person a
certain sum of moﬁey for providing those services.

The State comes aloﬁg and mandates that they
have to work two additional weeks. Therefore, my costs
go up. Why? Because of the enhanced service which is
prévided: I'm giving two more.weeks of sérvipe. Two
weeks-I didn't have to give before, I now have to give
because it was mandated by the state.

. . The argument was made that this additional cost

is only a cost. But this is a cost that comes about:

‘because of one reason: Enhanced service. That's the

reason why banks.increase their hour;. »Thét's the reason
wﬁy grocery stores incrEase'their-hoﬁrs. The more hours
they're open, the mofe bgsiness ﬁhey have. And that's
considered enhanced service.

. To me, this is very simply an enhanced service

.that‘s been mandated by the state. I don't see how you

can call it anything else but enhanced service.

Daniel P, Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682..9482
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It's not a new program. Agfeéd. We've always
been in this responsibility; we will continue to be in
this‘responsibﬁlity. But when the State mandates that

we have to do it in a fashion that causes us to increase

our:costs to providé this-énhanced,service,.the State

should be responsible for paying. It;s ver& simple, in
my mind.

CHAIR BROWN: Questions from other Members?

(No audible response)

CHAIR BROWN: . I just have one question. And it
goes'to the points that the Department of Fiﬁaﬁce raise.

" During the change in time period from 30 to

15 days, is there any documentation that the number of

regigtrations has increased oﬁ a trend-line basis due to
the chénge in fhe time frames?

MR. KELLEY: I don't have any data to provide
you from Orange. County at-this'point; but I can tell
you that during- the presidential, that period pfr

registratioh during that two-week period was

'signifiqantly higher than the previous presidential.

But in terms of incréased'régistration, our'registration
numbers are actually decreasing slightly in Oraﬁge
County.

CHAIR BROWN: And that goes to a point. It

could be an anomaly based on whéfever the election cycle

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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might bé._

From my standpoint, ifvthere's not adequate
documentation that the actual registrations have
increased, I find‘it vér& difficult, noﬁwithstanding the
shift in time periods; that the workload is.the same and
has not increased.

MS. SEILER: I £hink it's the method of the
workload that we're trying to point out to you. That is,
that due to the.méthod of having to put this af a
completely different’ cycle, with different staff, with
additional staff, that it has been an inéreased cost for
us.

MS. SHELTON: If I can, just to add a couple

of things from case law. There aren't too many

higher-level-of-service cases that have been decided by

~the courts. .One of them, though, is Long Beach Unified

§chool District v..The State of California. And that

case was a higher level of service regarding racial

desegregation,'where you had existing federal law, and

" the state came and required additional ;equiremenﬁs

imposed. .And the court said that was a higher level of
service.
In the process, to find a higher level of

service is requiring a finding that the State is

'mandating new requirements on the local agencies and

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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school districts.

bHere, if you just take a look at the
legislation, I think there is an example on page 8, all
the Législatufe did was changelthe'number n2gn to the
number "15." The Legislature did not change any of ‘the
mandated activities. |

fhe activities that are performed by the
counties, are activities they've decided to perform or
felt necessary to perform in Qrder to comply with the
legislation. |

And, yes, I'm sure there are increased costs.
But those activities have not béen expressly mandéted'by
the stéte which is required for a réimbursement findihg.

| MEMBER WORTHLEY: Well, time is money. I mean,

that's a very -- that's axiomatic. We're requiring
additional time. It requires additional ﬁone?.
VEven if theré was a repreééﬁtation made byvtheiincrease_
iﬁ Orange Counfy today. Even if YOu only had a few
pebple_come in, it still affects the.sequencing of

events. You still have to have people available to .

‘réceive and process theseAapplications, if it was 6nly

ten.

The point is, before, you had a point in time
where you-¢ould say, "This ié when it ends." :And as was
stated before -- and I've seen-this happen in our}own

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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eléctioﬁs office -- if you weré to éraph,the actiﬁity
level in-an elections office, as you get closer to the
élection, it goes like this (indicating).

We are now taking a responsibility, just -at the
time when if?s getting extremely busy in eléctions 
offices, and‘adding additiénal responsibilities to the
elections office.. Now, it's that mﬁch more difficult to
try to deal with these additional responsibilitieé, It
does result in the need fb; additional people, as was
pointed out. People who morphed into other
responsibilities in the elections éffice have to be,
again, left to. this particular role and résponsibility
Qf accepting thesé applicatibns; whéreas-before, they
wqﬁld move on to a different responsibility level.

It's an additional costr——.it's an enhanced
serVice.. And if it's not an enhénced service, you might

ask yourself, then why did the Legislature change the

" law? What was the purpose of changing the law if it

wasn't considered an enhanced service? There certainly
would be nd'réason for it.
CHAIR BROWN: Mr. Burdick?

" MR. BURDICK:. Chairman Brown and Members, again,

- Allan Burdick representing CSAC SB 90 service. It seems

like there's a couple of pqihts here that maybe have been

missed or maybe you haven't discussed. One of the things

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Tnc. 916.682.9482
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that we've got into defining was what is_a reimbursable
state mandate, and does it implement a public policy.
And, boy, it sure seems to me that that providing people
more time to register is a public policy. What they're
d01ng is theyfre implementing a public policy that:is
mandated on.

The second thing is this discussion about what
are they required to do? Were these things that have
been explained by these two professionals.in this

business? You know, are these things which essentially

- are optional?

- Now, let me tell you, first of all, election
departments are not the highest—funded department in a
county dovernment. They're General Fund departments, and .
very. often, you know, they re- lucky to get every dime'"":

they can to. maintain whatever level of service: they can .

~do to'meet their requirements.

- And the way the law is intended to be is, is it

 reasonably necessary for these people to do that in order

- to be able to carry it out? And they ve made the .

dec1sion that 1t's reasonably necessary to do it.

I think they will tell you they didn't do this
because, you'know, they thought it would be fun =- a
nice, extra frill or something. They looked at it, they |

looked at the law, they're.professionals; and they said,

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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y;ﬁ knéw; ;ﬁ£ together é plan fo.implement'that
legislation.,

"And I think finally is the fact that this is the
first time we've had this really kind of serious
discussion about what is being done and_the?implications
and so forth. And, obviously,.thére's nobody here from

the Secfetary of State's office who could participate in

the discussion to provide state advice to you. But as

you know, the next step in the process is parameters and
guidelines, in which you then sit down and try to work
out whét is eligible and what is not eiigible. That
does then come back to the Commission for its |
consideration.

So it seems to me I would hope the Commission .
would look at this and say, "This is.a perfect e#ample

of something we should send to the

| parameters—and;gﬁidelines stage. Wé;should’hét'limit

them by the decision we made today," because I think
there's agreement that there is some level of mandate

there. The question is the scope of it. To send it back

‘to parameters and guidelines, have it come back to you,

after you've had the Secretary of State participate,
after you've had the Departmenf of Finance have the
benefit of that discussion aﬁd make its decision, I think

that you'd have a much more sound decision than trying to

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR;Inc. 916.682.9482.
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11| - mandated the counties to perform those activities. And

21

grapple with this today when you're getting this -- a lot
of tﬁis.stuff ;s relativeiy new infbrmafion'for you.
Thahk'you very muéh.

“CHAIR BROWN: Thank you, Mr. Burdick.

MS. SHELTQN:. I'd like to clarify that a test
claim finding is a question of law. The standard is not
whether ‘or not it's reasonably Qéceéséry for counties to
perform‘those activities. We wouldn't dispute those |
factual determinations made by each county.

Thé standard is whether or not the state has

here, there is no evidence in the law at all that the
State has mandated any édditional-activitieg, other than
changing the dates in the statutes.

. The activities that they'fe-discussing here

cannot'neceséarily be discussed during the

- parameters-and-guidelines phase because we're making a

finding. And this proposed decision makes a finding that
they are not mandated by the State.

During parameters and guidelines, the Commission

‘does have discretion to.determine activities that are

'réasonably necessary to comply with the mandated
activity.
But the only mandated activity in the proposed

decision is the activity to amend the polling place

. Daniel P. Feldbaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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notice.
So any additional activities that the Commission
includes in parameteré‘aﬁd~guidelines has to relate to

amending the polling place notice. - And that would be

~listed to that activity.

CHAIR BROWN: Thark you, Counsel.

Mr. Walsh?

MEMBER WALSH: Are there any other people who
want to testify in this dispute or --

. MS. éMUR:_ Yes, as a matter of fact. No
éurprise there. There is ﬁandated activity. Again, I
said; it'é feally.hard to concéptualize. I had to go
around this several times befo;é I could see it myself.
It's not what you're doing; it's when you're doing it.
Just like Mr. Worthley stated, he said it's like a
business. If you're going to stay open on Saturday, your
employer is requiriﬁg"you to do the same:thing‘§ouhd§-

every other day of the week, you just have to do it now

~on Saturday.. The,same, too, for our election folks. The

service itself is the same, but the change of the date is

mandated as to when if is to be doné.
' CHAIR7BROWN: Any . further follow—uﬁs or
questions? |
.Do we have a motion for fhe staff

recommendation?

" Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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MEMBER WALSH: Move to approve the staff'
rgcommendatioﬂ.

CHAIR BROWN: Do we have a second? \

MEMBER HAIR:V I'11 second.

All those in favor, say "aye."

(A chorus of "ayes" was heard.)

CHAIR BROWN:. Opposed?

MEMBER WORTHLEY: Nay.

Any abstentions?

(No audible.résﬁonse)

CHAIR BROWN: The ayes have it.

The staff recommendatiqn is approved.A

 MS. HIGASHI: Ttem 6 will be presented by

Ms. Tokarski.

MS. TOKARSKI: Item 6 is the proposed Statement

of Decision for the item you just heard. The sole issue

is whether the~p£¢bosed Statement of Decision'éééﬁrately'

- reflects the Commission's decision .on the Fifteen-Day

Close of Voter Registration‘test claim.

staff recommends that the Commission adopt the
prqposéd Statemént‘of Décision_beginning on pége 3, which
acéurétely reflects the staff analysis énd fecommendétién'
on this test claim. Minor chahges, including those that

reflect the late fiiings, hearihg testimony; and vote

‘count will be included when issuing the final Statement

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482




10
11
12
13
14
15

16

19
20

21

22|

23
24

25

Commission on State Mandates — October 4, 2006

7
18

of Decision.
CHAIR BROWN: Do we have a.motion on that
recommendation?
MEMBER WALSH: So moved.
MEMBER GLAAB: Second§; 
CHAIR BROWN: All those in favor, say "aye."
(A chorus of ;ayes" was'heard.)~
CHAIR BROWN: Opposed?
MEMBER WORTHLEY: No.
CHAIR BROWN: Abstentions?
(No audible response)
| CHAIR BROWN: Thé ayes have it. The staff
recommendation appfovéd; |
' MR. BURDICK: Thank you very much.
MS. GMUR: lThank yéu.

MS. HIGASHI: Item 7 is the claim on Voter

'Identification Procedures. This item will also be

. presented by.Commission Gounsel Katherine Tokarski.

MS. TOKARSKI: This test claim addresses an

amendment to Elections Code section 14310 regarding

counting provisional ballots. A provisional ballot is a

regular ballot that has been sealed in a special
envélope, signed by the voter, and then deposited in the
ballot box. Provisional ballots can be réquired for

several reasons to prevent fraud. For example, when poll

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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workers cannot immediately verify an individual's name on
the official roster or if a voter requested an absentee

ballot but instead comes to the polling place without

bringing the absentee ballot.

Statutés of 6000, ChaptefAZGO,-amended Elections
Code section 14310, subdivision (c) (1), to add a |
requirement that élections_oﬁficials compare the
signatufe on each provisional baliot envelope with the
signature on the voter's affidavit of' registration.

Staff finds that pérforming signaturs comparison for all
provisional ballots cast is-a reimbursable sfate—mandated
program.

Howevef, in a situation where a locai government
calls a special election tﬁat could otherwise have been
legally consolidated with the next local or statewide
election( the downstream costs fo; dhecking'signatures on
provisional ballétsfpf‘£hét‘vbluntarily—hela elecﬁionzﬂu
would not be reimbursable. |

Sﬁaff recommends that the Commission adopt this

énalysis and partially épprové the test claim as

described in the conclusion at page 12 of the final staff
analysis. |
Will ﬁhe parties pléase state theif names?
- MS. TER KEUéST:: Hi, I'm Bonnie Ter Keurst. I'm

representing the County of San Bernardino.

Daniel P. Feldhaus, CSR, Inc. 916.682.9482
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